
BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS MEETING AGENDA 
CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS 1507 MAIN, HAYS, KS 

JULY 9, 2014 
8:15 A.M.      

1. CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIRMAN.

2. CONSENT AGENDA.

A. Minutes of the regular meeting of June 11, 2014

Action:  Consider approving the minutes of the 6/11/14 meeting. 

3. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS.

A. A public hearing to consider a request from Garry Staab for a three foot (3’) variance  to
reduce the east side yard building setback from the required seven feet (7’) to four feet 
(4’) to construct a 15’ X 24’ detached garage in the backyard to access from the street at 
119 W 38th Street (Lot 3, Block 2 Skyline 6th Addition) (Case #08-14) . 

Action:  Consider approval of the 3 foot variance request for the property at 119 W 
38th Street. 

4. NON-PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS.

A.  None

Action:  None

5. OFF AGENDA ITEMS/COMMUNICATIONS.

A.  Citizen Comments

B. Other

6. ADJOURNMENT.

If you will be unable to attend please contact the Planning, Inspection and Enforcement office at 785- 628-7310.  
Thank   you.  Any person with a disability and needing special accommodations to attend this meeting should 
contact the Planning, Inspection and Enforcement office (785-628-7310) 48 hours prior to the scheduled meeting 
time.  Every attempt will be made to accommodate any requests for assistance. 



1

DRAFT  
HAYS AREA BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS  

COMMISSION CHAMBERS IN CITY HALL  
MINUTES  

JUNE 11, 2014 
8:15 A.M. 

1. CALL TO ORDER:   The Hays Area Board of Zoning Appeals met on Wednesday, 
June 11, 2014 at 8:15 a.m. in Commission Chambers of City Hall.  

Roll Call: 
Present:         Lou Caplan 

Jerry Sonntag 
Gerald Befort 
Thomas Lippert   
Shane Pruitt  

Chairman Lou Caplan declared a quorum was present and called the meeting to order.              

City Staff Present: I.D. Creech, Public Works Director, Jesse Rohr, Superintendent of 
Planning, Inspection and Enforcement, Linda Bixenman, Administrative Assistant of 
Planning, Inspection and Enforcement. 

2. CONSENT AGENDA:

A.  MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF MARCH 12, 2014. There was a motion by Tom 
Lippert with a second by Gerald Befort to approve the minutes from the May 14, 2014 
meeting.  There were no corrections or additions to those minutes. 

Vote:  Ayes:       Lou Caplan 
Jerry Sonntag 
Gerald Befort 
Thomas Lippert 
Shane Pruitt  

3. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS:

A.  CASE # 06-14 – REQUEST BY VICKI E MARSICEK FOR A FOUR FOOT (4’) VARIANCE TO 
REDUCE THE EAST SIDE YARD BUILDING SETBACK FROM THE REQUIRED SEVEN FEET TO THREE 
FEET TO PERMIT AN EXISTING CARPORT RECENTLY ERECTED AT 415 E 16TH ST (LOT 15, BLOCK 
15 FAIRVIEW ADDITION):  Jesse Rohr presented the above property on the overhead visual. 

Vicki E Marsicek presented her application to the board to request a four foot (4’) 
variance to reduce the east side yard building setback from the required seven feet (7’) 
to three feet (3’) to permit a 11’6” X 19’ X 9 carport already erected in October, 2013.  The 
sole reason for the carport was to have a shed to protect her car.   She received a notice 
from the City in April, 2014 that the carport did not meet the building setback 



 

 2

requirements and that she had not applied for a permit that would have prevented this.   
The city had given her the option of (a) moving the carport to her backyard or (b) 
removing the carport entirely.  She stated that moving it to her backyard was not an 
option because the alley is inaccessible in the winter months because it is not plowed 
when there is snow fall.   
 
Lou Caplan asked if a contractor had erected the carport.  The purpose of the permitting 
process is so cases like this do not arise; so you find out the regulations before something is 
put in.  Mrs. Marsicek answered that a contractor had erected the carport.  She did not 
realize she needed a permit.  Her husband used to take care of these types of things.   
 
Shane Pruitt sympathized with her situation.  He explained the importance of applying for 
a permit that would have provided the rules and regulations to prevent this type of 
situation. He explained that per the 5 statutory requirements that are to be met that this 
would not be considered a “hardship”; there are few times an alley cannot be used due 
to weather conditions. 
 
He asked Jesse Rohr if this was considered a garage with three enclosed sides.  Jesse Rohr 
explained that, per the ordinance, by definition, it is considered a garage. Jesse Rohr 
explained that one criteria of a carport is that it can never be enclosed and there not be 
any structural issues.   
 
Tom Lippert pointed out that there were many residences in the neighborhood with 
detached garages in the rear of the property that are much closer to the property line 
than 7 feet that must have been granted a variance.  He asked Jesse Rohr why this 
request would make a difference; if it is because it is closer to the front. 
 
Jesse Rohr answered that would be correct.  To grant this variance would set precedence 
for requests to build the main structure closer to the property line. There has been one 
single carport in the neighborhood constructed within 3 feet of the side yard property line 
in 1982.  
 
Tom Lippert asked what signifies if it is an attached or detached garage.   Jesse Rohr 
answered that a detached garage is identified as “accessory use” and must meet those 
regulations.   
 
Lou Caplan asked if 16th Street was snow plowed when there is snowfall.   Jesse Rohr 
answered that it is not an emergency snow route; there may be one pass during a 
significant snowfall.  
 
Gerald Befort asked if it would be considered a carport if they would remove the east side 
of the structure and leave the north side.  Jesse Rohr answered that it would be; although 
they would still need the variance.  
 
Jerry Sonntag explained the five statutory requirements that have to be met.  If there are 
other options available to the applicant that they would not need a variance has to be 
considered.  He suggested other options.   



 

 3

 
Vicki Marsicek asked if they remove the east side, if it could remain where it is located.   
She asked for a compromise.   
 
Shane Pruitt asked if it would still be safe with the removal of one of the sides.  Jesse Rohr 
answered that generally it is a kit and the sides could be added or removed and not pose 
a safety risk.   
  
Lou Caplan asked if there were any comments from the audience.  There were none. 
 
Jerry Sonntag moved, Gerald Befort seconded the motion to grant the four foot (4’) 
variance to reduce the east side yard building setback from the required 7 feet to 3 feet 
based on the consideration it does meet the five statutory requirements subject to the 
condition that they remove the east side of the three-sided enclosed structure to convert 
to a carport with two sides.   
 
Jesse Rohr pointed out to the board of two conditions that should be added; deadline 
when the east side should be removed and must submit an application to the city building 
office for a permit. 
 
Tom Lippert pointed out that there was an existing carport on a neighboring property that 
is a similar distance from the side yard property line as this request.  He asked if the 
difference between the two was that this carport was closer to the front.  Jesse Rohr 
acknowledged the similarity; both are behind the front line of the main structure of the 
house; although this house with the carport is closer to the street. 
 
Jerry Sonntag restated the motion: 
Jerry Sonntag moved, Gerald Befort seconded the motion to grant the four foot (4’) 
variance to reduce the east side yard building setback from the required 7 feet to 3 feet 
based on the consideration it meets the 5 statutory requirements subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
1.   Remove the entire east side of the 3 sided enclosed structure to convert to a carport  
2.  The entire east side enclosed structure must be removed within 90 days from this day, 
June 11, 2014.  
3. Must submit a building permit application and be approved for a building permit for the 
carport.  
4.  The carport can never be enclosed  
   
Vote:  Ayes:                       Lou Caplan 
                                            Jerry Sonntag  

Gerald Befort 
Thomas Lippert 
Shane Pruitt 
 

Lou Caplan informed the applicant to check with the contractor about what has 
happened.  



 

 4

 
Vicki Marsicek thanked the board for the compromise.   
 
B.   CASE # 07-14 – REQUEST BY LUECKE PROPERTIES, LLC, JOHN LUECKE, OWNER, FOR A  
SPECIAL-USE PERMIT TO PERMIT THE CONSTRUCTION OF STORAGE UNITS WITHIN THE “C-2” 
GENERAL COMMERCIAL & SERVICE DISTRICT UNDER SECTION 71-504 (16) LOCATED AT 780 E 
41ST ST (UNDER PARCEL ADDRESS 800 E 41ST – TRACT IN THE NW/4 OF S27-T13S-R18W)  Jesse 
Rohr presented the above property on the overhead visual.   He pointed out the storage 
unit that was recently constructed.  The request is for a special use permit to build more 
storage units.      Per the site plan, there is a 60 foot right of way on the west side. 
 
John Luecke presented the application to the board to request a special use permit for 
additional storage units under Section 71-504 (16) allowed within the “C-2” General 
Commercial & Service District with a special use permit on the property at 780 E 41st Street.   
They built the first 390 foot unit north to south on the west side consisting of 82 storage units 
that are currently all filled. 
 
The proposed units would be built east to west on the south side of the lot.  He explained 
that the plan had been altered slightly from that presented with his application.  They 
want to build two units on the south side to close it in to make it more appropriate next to 
the adjoining parcel to the south that is for sale.   
 
It is unknown what development will be for the south of the subject property.   
 
Jerry Sonntag stated that he did not have a problem with building storage units and 
appreciated what they are doing; although he did not appreciate that the plan had 
been altered from what was submitted with the application.  He was not sure they could 
make an informed decision without the details and plans.    
 
Tom Lippert asked if they originally planned for Recreational Vehicles Storage Units.  He 
also asked about the proposed building identified as a manager’s apartment.  Mr. Luecke 
stated that it was the family consensus that the original plan be swapped to have the 
household storage units on the south side rather than the RV Storage because it would 
close it in nicely for a nice appearance and not appear trashy or like an industrial zone.   
The plan is for a manager’s apartment also.   
 
The board asked for clarification of the location of the proposed storage units.  John 
Luecke pointed to the location on the map where the next two 30 foot by 100 foot 
storage units would be constructed on the south side of the property built from east to 
west.  It was a family consensus to build the residential type of storage units since this is 
what the market wants to build in a way for access for the proposed Recreational Vehicle 
storage units.   
 
Lou Caplan asked where the entrance was located to the south of the property.  Jesse 
Rohr answered that there is a 60 foot right of way on the west edge of the property.    
 



 

 5

Lou Caplan asked if there would be a fence along the south side.  Mr. Luecke answered 
that because they do not know how the south side is going to develop, it was unknown if 
there would be a fence.   
 
Tom Lippert pointed out that the appearance of the site is trashy and there are piles in 
some areas and asked about their plans of taking care of this. He appreciates they are 
closing off the south side until things get taken care of.  Mr. Luecke answered that some of 
that was building materials that will get used up.  The piles are from his dad’s projects that 
are being cleaned up slowly.  It is to their benefit to make things look good. 
 
Lou Caplan asked why not have one continuous building.  John Luecke answered that 
small units fit on the end of a building and they have a demand for small units.   Also it 
prevents having an open end.  
 
Shane Pruitt and Jerry Sonntag asked if they knew for sure the size of the buildings would 
be 30’ by 100’.    John Luecke answered that the next project is two 30’ X 100’ buildings to 
be constructed on the south side.   
 
Lou Caplan and Jerry Sonntag asked if this is a request for the remainder of the units.   
They would need the details and plans.  
 
Jesse Rohr answered that they could grant a special use permit for the remainder of the 
proposed storage units. They could ask the wishes of Mr. Luecke. There were conditions 
tied to the first building to get an idea what the building and site would look like and there 
would be installation of the fencing.  They have satisfied the conditions.  They would have 
to apply for a separate special use permit for the manager’s apartment.   
 
Lou Caplan asked if they could do the special use permit for only these two proposed 
buildings.  Jesse Rohr answered “yes”.   
 
Mr. Luecke answered that their main concern is to be granted a special use permit to 
construct two storage units on the south side of the subject property.  It will depend on 
market demand on the next step.  
 
After discussion among the board, it was determined they would consider the special use 
permit for two 30 foot by 100 foot storage units to be constructed on the south side of the 
property.   
 
Lou Caplan asked if there were any comments from the audience.  There were none. 
 
Jerry Sonntag moved, Tom Lippert seconded the motion to grant a special use permit to 
construct two 30 foot by 100 foot storage units on the south side of the property that will 
look like the building on the recently constructed building on the west side allowed with a 
special use permit in a “C-2” General Commercial and Service District provided under 
Section 71-504(16) on the property at 780 E 41st Street (Parcel address 800 E 41st).  The 
condition is only two 30 foot by 100 foot storage units to be built under this special use 



 

 6

permit and to be built on the south side of the subject property.  There would be no 
stipulation of fencing on the south side.  
 
Tom Lippert asked if they plan to construct a fence on the south side.  Mr. Luecke 
explained that it would be determined what is appropriate to go there after they know 
what will be developed on the south parcel.  
 
Jerry Sonntag explained that he was not worried of having fencing on the south side until 
they know what will be developed on the south parcel.   
 
Vote:  AYES                        Lou Caplan 
                                            Jerry Sonntag  

 Gerald Befort 
 Thomas Lippert 
 Shane Pruitt    

 
6.     ADJOURNMENT:  Lou Caplan adjourned the meeting at 9:12 a.m. 
 
 
Submitted by: Linda K. Bixenman, Administrative Secretary, 
                         Planning, Inspection and Enforcement  
 






















